



**TOWN BOARD
TOWN OF OSSINING
BIRDSALL-FAGAN POLICE/COURT FACILITY
86-88 SPRING STREET
OSSINING, NEW YORK**

**AUGUST 9, 2011
7:30 P.M.**

**SUPERVISOR
Catherine Borgia**

**COUNCILMEMBERS
Geoffrey Harter Michael L. Tawil
Peter Tripodi Northern Wilcher**

I. CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – ROLL CALL

The Regular Meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Ossining was held on August 9, 2011 in the Police/Court Facility, 86-88 Spring Street in Ossining. The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Supervisor Catherine Borgia. Members of the Board present were: Councilmembers Geoffrey Harter, Michael Tawil, Northern Wilcher and Peter Tripodi. Also present were Town Attorney Wayne Spector and Town Clerk Mary Ann Roberts.

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Supervisor Borgia thanked the Ossining Fire Department for their work on the annual Ossining Fire Parade. The parade was enjoyed by all members of the community.

Also, the Ossining Chamber of Commerce is having their second annual Harvest Festival on October 29, 2011 along North State Road. The Chamber is currently accepting application for vendors for this event.

III. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS

IV. BOARD RESOLUTIONS

A. Approval of Minutes-Regular Meeting

Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the following be approved:

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby approves the July 26, 2011 Minutes of the Regular Meeting as presented.

Motion Carried: Unanimously

B. Approval of Minutes-Special Meeting

Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the following be approved:

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby approves the August 2, 2011 Minutes of the Special Meeting as presented.

Motion Carried: Unanimously

C. Approval of Voucher Detail Report

Councilmember Harter moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Tawil that the following be approved:

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby approves the Voucher Detail Report dated August 9, 2011 in the amount of \$258,207.84

Councilman Tawil added that this week's voucher detail report is somewhat larger than normal due to the number of items on it. This week there are approximately 30 refunds being given to taxpayers that are pursuant to grievances held with the tax Assessor's Office. This is one of the ways of providing much needed tax relief to the taxpayers of this town. Councilman Tawil advised that he would be voting for the voucher detail report.

Supervisor Borgia added that in addition to the actual refunds there are also some items relating to feeding the Board of Assessment review. Supervisor Borgia advised that the number of claims from this year and last year have increased tremendously and she thanked the volunteer members of the Board of Assessment review. These members put in a lot of hard work. The Government runs efficiently due to all the volunteers that come to help us.

Councilman Tripodi added that the previous comments were made because he consistently votes no on the voucher detail reports. Councilman Tripodi stated that he is willing to sit down with Councilman Tawil and go through each and every item on the voucher detail report and identify the items that may not be necessarily worth approving such as a dance instructor, art instructor and pest control at the North State Road Police Command Center. Councilman Tripodi stated that he will not be voting for the voucher detail report.

Supervisor Borgia added that The Town maintains all of their buildings adequately including pest control when needed. The North State Road facility is currently occupied. It is very important to maintain the real property assets when necessary and that includes pest control.

Vote: 4-0-1

**Voting Aye: Tawil, Harter,
Wilcher & Borgia**

Nay: Tripodi

D. Policy for Fundraising in Town Parks

Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the following be approved:

Whereas the Town Board of the Town of Ossining is the policy-making body governing Town Parks, and

Whereas the Town Board has not to date had a formal policy regarding the use of Town Parks for fundraising, and

Whereas the Town Board wishes to enable the Town Parks to be used for fundraising events, provided that reasonable time, place and use restrictions are enforced, therefore

Be it resolved that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining henceforth allows fundraising activities to occur in the park, subject to the Recreation Department permit process, and Town Board approval if deemed necessary.

Supervisor Borgia added that this item was discussed at a Town Work Session and it was decided that it would be best to have a written policy due to the inconsistencies. We will continue to review the permit process. At the Town's next

Work Session we will be discussing this topic and possibly adding some additional restrictions. The Board will continue to refine this process and we go along now that we have this policy in place.

Councilman Tripodi added that having the Town Board review and approve the use of parks in the Town is necessary and he advised that he was against this measure last week. However, the Parks Superintendent advised him that he could not have a political fundraiser and then in turn gave permission to another candidate to have a fundraiser at a park. Councilman Tripodi was going to vote to approve this resolution with the Board tonight however, there are no restrictions stated in this resolution to stop unethical behavior that has been demonstrated to him. Therefore, he is voting against this resolution.

Supervisor Borgia advised that she did not include the restrictions in this resolution because she wanted to have further discussion regarding the policy. She wanted this resolution to be the first step in this policy making process and refine the policy as we move forward.

Councilman Tawil stated for the record that the individual who was granted permission to use the park for fundraising has since moved his event to another location.

Vote: 4-0-1

Voting Aye: Tawil, Harter,
Wilcher & Borgia

Nay: Tripodi

E. Surplus Equipment-Senior Center

Councilmember Harter moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Tawil that the following be approved:

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby declares the senior mini-bus nutrition vehicle as surplus and authorizes the sale of, to the best offer made; however; if no sale is able to be made due to the poor condition of the vehicle, the Town Board authorizes the equipment to be disposed of.

VIN
1FDXE40S8WHB01110

YEAR/MODEL
1998/FORD

Motion Carried: Unanimously

F. Surplus Equipment-Highway Department

Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the following be approved:

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby declares the diesel generator formerly used at the Stormy town Road pump station, now disabled due to the completion of the gravity sewer project, as surplus and authorizes the sale of, to the best offer made; however; if no sale is able to be made due to the poor condition of the generator, the Town Board authorizes the equipment to be disposed of.

Motion Carried: Unanimously

G. A Local Law entitled “Local Law No. 7 of 2011, for the Purpose of Amending Article VI, Affordable Housing, of the Zoning Law.”

Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the following be approved:

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby adopts the attached Local Law No. 7 of 2011 entitled Article VI, Affordable House, of the Zoning Law.

Motion Carried: Unanimously
Roll Call Vote:
Ayes: Councilmembers: Tawil,
Wilcher, Harter, Tripodi &
Supervisor Borgia

H. Authorization to sign stipulation with the Ms. Kathy Asaro, Manager of the Senior Nutrition Program regarding unused sick day

Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the following be approved:

WHEREAS, the Town of Ossining has a policy which allows managers and employees who are not represented by a collective bargaining agreement to accumulate up to 200 sick leave, and does not provide for monetary compensation for such unused sick leave, and

WHEREAS, Ms. Kathy Asaro, Manger of the Senior Nutrition Program, has 200 days of unused sick leave accumulated over many years of employment with the Town on Ossining, and

WHEREAS, Ms. Asaro wished to donate 50 days of her sick leave to Ossining Tax Assessor, Josette Polzella, who is currently on leave due to illness, therefore be it

RESOLVED that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining authorizes the transfer of 50 sick days from Ms. Asaro to Ms. Polzella, to be paid at Ms. Polzella's regular rate of pay. This resolution shall not establish a precedent with regard to how similar situations may be handled in the future.

Motion Carried: Unanimously

I. Ambulance District Name Change

Councilmember Wilcher moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Tawil that the following be approved:

Resolved that the Town Board of the Town of Ossining hereby changes the name of the "Ossining-New Castle Ambulance District" to the "Mid-Hudson EMS District," and determines that all business conducted by the District should use this new name henceforth.

Supervisor Borgia added that this will enable us to have better coverage between the three municipalities and we are looking forward to working with our new partners. This was a recommendation that was made by the Ambulance Over Site Committee and this name change was agreed to by OVAC.

Motion Carried: Unanimously

V. VISITOR RECOGNITION

Mr. Brian Steb, President Braircliff Woods Condo Association stated that there are a number of residents that are here from Briarcliff Woods this evening and Mr. Steb shared the findings with them from the last Work Session meeting. As a result of that meeting, The Board felt that there were no cost effective ways for an interim solution for the drainage problem on Cedar Lane and that the Board was going to be focusing more on a long term solution.

Supervisor Borgia added that there is a small solution that was recommended by our Engineer and planned to discuss at the Work Session following the Legislative meeting. Our Engineer feels that this will be more of a mitigating solution for the two properties at the top of Cedar Lane (165 & 167) and it is something that will be considered and perhaps moving forward with this solution.

Bobby Williams Spring Street discussed his opinion regarding U.S. Government, Medicare and budget process.

VI. ADJOURNMENT – Work Session to discuss Town Engineer recommendations on Cedar Lane drainage project and engineering proposal for Briarcliff Woods drainage project.

At 8:00 P.M. Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the meeting be adjourned to Work Session to discuss the engineering proposal for Briarcliff Woods .

Motion Carried: Unanimously

VII. Presentation of 2010 Town of Ossining Audit report by Thomas Warren/Dom Consolo from O'Connor Davies

At 8:50 P.M. Councilmember Tawil moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Wilcher that the Board reconvene to Legislative Session for the 2010 Presentation of Town of Ossining Audit report by Thomas Warren/Dom Consolo from O'Connor Davies

Mr. Consolo from O'Connor Davies was present and advised that they have completed their 2010 audit for the Town. Mr. Consolo explained that the major fund for the Town is the general fund, we also have a highway fund and a Town outside fund. Mr. Consolo reviewed the items of the audit on page 53 including the original budget, final budget and actual results of operations for the 2010 year. On the revenue side of the table the Town showed that they did \$107, 000 better than anticipated in revenue collections. Mr. Consolo explained that on the expenditure side of the budget the Town spent \$4,093,000 and the Town was able to save \$392,000. The Town increased their general fund balance in the amount of \$726,000. This showed that the Town was having a very hard year in 2009 and basically rebounded and is in excellent financial condition.

Supervisor Borgia thanked all the Managers and Employees of the Town for being so conscientious and scrupulous of our resources.

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

At 9:05 P.M. Councilmember Tripodi moved and it was seconded by Councilmember Harter that the meeting be adjourned in memory of the fallen soldiers in Afghanistan.

Motion Carried: Unanimously

Approved:

Ann Marie Rocco Deputy Town Clerk

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF STATE
41 STATE STREET
ALBANY, NY 12231

Draft: 4-28-11

Local Law Filing

(Use this form to file a local law with the Secretary of State.)

Text of law should be given as amended. Do not include matter being eliminated and do not use italics or underlining to indicate new matter.

Town of OSSINING

Local Law No. _____ of the year 2011

A local law entitled "Local Law # _____ of 2011, for the Purpose of Amending Article VI, Affordable Housing, of the Zoning Law."

Be it enacted by the TOWN BOARD
of the _____

Town of OSSINING as follows:

TEXT COMMENCES ON NEXT PAGE

(If additional space is needed, attach pages the same size as this sheet, and number each.)

LOCAL LAW # ____ OF THE YEAR 2011

BE IT ENACTED by the Town Board of the Town of Ossining as follows:

Section 1: Title

This Local Law shall be known and cited as "Local Law #__ of 2011, for the Purpose of Amending Article VI, Affordable Housing, of the Zoning Law."

Section 2: Legislative Intent

The Ossining Town Board has a desire to bring the Town's affordable housing regulations into conformance with the Westchester County Fair and Affordable Housing policies. The purpose of this local law is to achieve that end.

Section 3: Zoning Law Amendments

1. The following definitions in Section 200-53A of the Zoning Law shall be amended to read as follows:

BELOW-MARKET-RATE (BMR) UNIT

A for-purchase housing unit that is affordable to a household whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income (AMI) for Westchester as defined annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and for which the annual housing cost of a unit including common charges, principal, interest, taxes and insurance (PITI) does not exceed 33% of 80% of the AMI adjusted for family size, and that is marketed in accordance with the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan.

A rental unit that is affordable to a household whose income does not exceed 60% of the AMI and for which the annual housing cost of the unit, defined as rent plus any tenant paid utilities, does not exceed 30% of 60% of the AMI adjusted for family size, and that is marketed in accordance with the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan.

~~A new or rehabilitated housing unit which is restricted as to sale or rent to remain affordable to a BMR unit eligible household by generally not exceeding 30% of the aggregate gross income of the household. Said housing unit must be the primary residence of the household and shall not be sublet without the consent of the Town Board or its designee.~~

BMR UNIT-ELIGIBLE HOUSEHOLD

A household whose aggregate gross annual income, including the total of all current annual income of members residing in the household from any source whatsoever at the time of application (excluding the earnings of working household members of 21 years of age or younger who are full-time students), does not exceed the income criteria in the definition herein of "Below-Market-Rate Unit."~~80% of the Westchester County median annual income for its household size [based on the U.S. Census and as updated by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)].~~ In addition, the net assets of the household at the time prior to purchase or lease may not exceed 50% of the purchase price of the unit, except where such households rely, due to age or disability, on the assets in lieu of income. ~~For example, for the year 2006,~~ limitations are as follows:

Persons in Household	1	2	3	4	5	6+
Maximum eligible income (80% of median)	\$54,050	\$61,750	\$69,500	\$77,200	\$83,400	\$89,550
Maximum housing cost (30% of gross income)						
Annually	\$16,215	\$18,525	\$20,850	\$23,160	\$25,020	\$26,865
Monthly	\$1,351	\$1,544	\$1,738	\$1,930	\$2,085	\$2,239
Maximum sale price (at 5.8% interest with thirty-year mortgage)	\$157,920	\$192,500	\$227,235	\$260,900	\$298,550	\$317,120
Eligible unit types	Studio or 1-bedroom	Studio, 1-, or 2-bedroom	2- or 3-bedroom	2, 3- or 4-bedroom	3- or 4-bedroom	3- or 4-bedroom

2. Article IV, Affordable Housing, of the Zoning Law shall be amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE VI. Affordable Housing

§ 200-32. Findings.

The Town Board of the Town of Ossining acknowledges the high cost of housing compared to average earnings in the County, and this trend has grown more noticeable as land and housing values have increased in recent years. Maintaining and ensuring a balanced mix of housing types and sizes that are affordable to a range of incomes is essential to ensuring the long-term health of the community. Such balanced housing stock enables a variety of residents to live and work in the Town, maintain family ties, and participate in community services, such as emergency services. Balanced housing is also essential to attracting and maintaining an adequate workforce, a healthy business environment, and a balanced tax base that supports local services and the quality of life. It is therefore important to maintain a mix of housing choices and to encourage and/or require the construction of below-market-rate (BMR) units in future development.

§ 200-33. Required Below-Market-Rate Unit Component.

Within all residential developments of 10 or more units created by subdivision or site plan approval, no less than 10% of the total number of units shall be created as BMR units. In residential developments of five to nine units, at least one BMR unit shall be created.

§ 200-~~34~~**33. Multifamily, and General Business and One-Family Residence Districts.**

- A. To achieve the purposes above, the approval authority ~~shall grant~~may require that a residential density bonus ~~be granted~~ for multiple, row or attached dwellings constructed or rehabilitated in the MF District with one-half of said density bonus consisting of below-market-rate units as defined and regulated in this article. The maximum permitted density bonus shall be in accordance with the following schedule:

Size of Property (acres)	Maximum Permitted Density Bonus
10 or more	20%
More than 5 but less than 10	30%
Less than or equal to 5	40%

- B. To achieve the purposes above, the approval authority ~~shall grant~~may require that a residential density bonus ~~be granted~~ for multiple, row or attached dwellings constructed or rehabilitated in the GB District with one-half of said density bonus consisting of below-market-rate units as defined and regulated in this article. The maximum permitted density bonus shall be in accordance with the following schedule:

Size of Property (acres)	Maximum Permitted Density Bonus
10 or more	20%
More than 5 but less than 10	30%
More than 2 but less than 5	40%
Less than 2	100%

~~§ 200-34. Cluster developments in one-family residence districts.~~

- C. To achieve the purposes above, for dwelling units constructed or rehabilitated in the one-family residence districts in cluster developments pursuant to § 200-31 of this chapter, the approval authority ~~shall grant~~may require that a residential density bonus ~~be granted~~ with one-half of said density bonus consisting of below-market-rate units as defined and regulated in this article. The maximum permitted density bonus shall be in accordance with the schedule in § 200-33-34A above. To assist in achieving the density permitted, the applicant may apply to the Planning Board for a cluster development pursuant to § 200-31 of this chapter.

§ 200-35. Below-market-rate units.

- A. Finishes, amenities, size, distribution and mix. To the maximum extent possible, the BMR units shall have the same exterior finishes, siting and exterior design and general amenities as comparable to the market rate units within the development, and said BMR units shall have access to the same amenities as the market rate units. The BMR units shall be no less than 80% of the size of said market rate units, and shall be reasonably distributed throughout the project. Further, the BMR units shall be provided in a mix of unit types in the same proportion as all other units in the development unless a different proportion is approved by the Planning Board as being better related to the housing needs, current or projected, of the Town of Ossining.
- B. Minimum gross floor area. Notwithstanding §§ 200-21 and 200-22 of this chapter, the minimum gross floor area per dwelling unit shall not be less than the following:

- (1) Studio/efficiency unit: ~~350~~450 square feet.
- (2) One-bedroom unit: ~~600~~675 square feet.
- (3) Two-bedroom unit: ~~800~~750 square feet.
- (4) Three-bedroom unit: 1,000 square feet (including at least 1.5 baths).
- (5) Four-bedroom unit: 1,200 square feet (including at least 1.5 baths).

C. Occupancy standards. The minimum and maximum occupancy of a BMR unit shall be as follows:

Number of Bedrooms	Minimum Number of Persons	Maximum Number of Persons
Studio/efficiency	1	2
1	1	2
2	2	4
3	3	6
4	4	8

D. BMR unit-eligible household. Households must meet the criteria established in § 200-53A, under "BMR Unit-Eligible Household."

E. Maximum rent and sales price. The maximum monthly rent for a BMR unit and the maximum gross sales price for a BMR unit shall be established in accordance with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development guidelines as published in the current edition of the "Westchester County Area Median Income (AMI) Sales & Rent Limits" available from the County of Westchester. ~~The monthly rent, including utilities, for BMR units shall not exceed 30% of the aggregate gross monthly income of an eligible household as defined in § 200-53A, under "BMR unit eligible household," for the maximum size household that may occupy such unit as set forth in Subsection C above. The maximum gross sales price for a BMR unit shall not exceed a figure based on a maximum household expense of 30% of the aggregate gross monthly income of an eligible household as defined in § 200-53A for the maximum size household that may occupy such unit as set forth in Subsection C above, relating to the sum of principal, interest, taxes, and insurance, based on industry standard mortgage underwriting guidelines, prevailing interest rates, and a down payment of 5%.~~

F. ~~Priority of BMR unit applicants.~~

~~(1) Households applying for BMR units shall be selected on the basis of the following categories of priority:~~

- ~~(a) Town of Ossining municipal employees.~~
- ~~(b) Persons serving as emergency responders for the Town of Ossining.~~
- ~~(c) All other residents of the Town of Ossining.~~
- ~~(d) Employees of the Ossining School District.~~
- ~~(e) Other persons employed in the Town of Ossining.~~
- ~~(f) Relatives of residents of the Town of Ossining.~~
- ~~(g) Other residents of Westchester County.~~
- ~~(h) Other persons employed in Westchester County.~~
- ~~(i) All others.~~

~~(2) Within each of the above categories, the following special groups shall receive priority in the following order:~~

- ~~(a) Households whose head of household or spouse is 62 years of age or older.~~
- ~~(b) First time homebuyers.~~
- ~~(c) Households whose head of household or spouse is 30 years of age or younger.~~

F. Time period of affordability. Units designated as BMR units must remain affordable for a minimum of 50 years from the date of the initial Certificate of Occupancy for rental properties and from the date of the original sale for ownership units.

G. Affirmative marketing. The BMR units created under the provisions of this article shall be sold or rented, and resold and re-rented during the required period of affordability to only qualifying income-eligible households. Such income-eligible households shall be solicited in accordance with the requirements, policies and protocols established in the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan so as to ensure outreach to racially and ethnically diverse households.

GH. Property restriction. A property containing any BMR units must be restricted using a mechanism such as a declaration of restrictive covenants in recordable form acceptable to the Town Attorney which shall ensure that the BMR unit shall remain subject to affordable regulations of this article for the minimum 50-year period of affordability. Among other provisions, the covenants shall require that the unit be the primary residence of the resident household selected to occupy the unit. Upon approval, such declaration shall be recorded against the property containing the BMR unit prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the development. The following statement shall be included in the covenants, deed, Certificate of Occupancy and/or rental agreement, as appropriate, for each BMR dwelling unit:

"This is a below-market-rate unit as defined in § 200-53A of the Code of the Town of Ossining, New York, and is subject to all restrictions and limitations as set forth therein."

HI. Resale requirements. In the case of owner-occupied BMR units, the title to said property shall be restricted so that in the event of any resale by the home buyer or any successor, the resale price shall not exceed the then-maximum sales price for said unit, as determined in this article, or the sum of:

- (1) the net purchase price (i.e., gross sales prices minus subsidies) paid for the unit by the selling owner, increased by the percentage increase, if any, in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers in the New York-Northern New Jersey Area, as published by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics (the "Index") on any date between (a) the month that was two months earlier than the date on which the seller acquired the unit, and (b) the month that is two months earlier than the month in which the seller contracts to sell the unit. If the Bureau stops publishing this index, and fails to designate a successor index, the Town of Ossining will designate a substitute index; and
- (2) the cost of major capital improvements made by the seller of the unit while said seller of the unit owned the unit as evidenced by paid receipts depreciated on a straight line basis over a 15-year period from the date of completion and such approval shall be requested for said major capital improvement no later than the time the seller of the unit desires to include it in the resale price.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the resale price exceed an amount

affordable to a household at 80% of the AMI at the time of the resale. In the case of owner-occupied BMR units, the title to said property shall be restricted so that in the event of any resale by the homeowner or any successor, the resale price shall not exceed the maximum sales price for said unit, as determined in Subsection E, plus the depreciated value of capital improvements based on their estimated life for up to 5% of the price of the unit.

- I. Lease renewal requirements. Applicants for rental BMR units shall, if eligible and if selected for occupancy, sign leases for a term of no more than two years. As long as a household remains eligible and has complied with the terms of the lease, said household shall be offered renewal leases for a term of no more than two years each. Renewal of a lease shall be subject to the conditions of Federal, State or County provisions that may be imposed by the terms of the original development funding agreements for the development or to the provisions of other applicable local law.

If no such provisions are applicable and if a household's annual gross income should subsequently exceed the maximum then allowable as defined in this article, then said household may complete their current lease term and shall be offered a market rate rental unit, if available, in the development at the termination of such lease term. If no such dwelling unit shall be available at said time, or if the household does not choose to occupy a market rate rental unit, said household shall be offered the opportunity to pay the greater of (1) the rent amount payable under the provisions of this article, or (2) 30% of the household's monthly adjusted income provided that the increased rent may not exceed the market rate rent in the development for units with the same number of bedrooms, for a term of not more than one (1) year.¹

- I.K. Administration. The Town Board shall be responsible for administering these regulations and may designate a board, commission or other organization to monitor compliance.

Section 4. Ratification, Readoption and Confirmation

Except as specifically modified by the amendments contained herein, the Code of the Town of Ossining as adopted and amended from time to time thereafter is otherwise to remain in full force and effect and is otherwise ratified, readopted and confirmed.

¹ Or, as an alternative for Town Board consideration, for ongoing two-year terms.

Section 5: Inclusion in Code

It is the intention of the Ossining Town Board and it is hereby enacted that the provisions of this Local Law shall be included in the Code of the Town of Ossining; that the sections and subsections of this Local Law may be renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intention; and that the words "local law" shall be changed to "chapter," "section" or other appropriate word, as required for codification.

Section 6: Renumbering

The location and numerical designation of this Local Law and the sections included herein shall be delegated to the discretion of the codifier, General Code, which may renumber this Local Law and sections as are necessary to accommodate these amendments.

Section 7: Codification

This Local Law shall be incorporated into the Code of the Town of Ossining and shall be assigned a chapter number and appropriate section numbers by the codifier, General Code, in accordance with the numbering system of the Code.

Section 8: Codifier's Changes

This Local Law shall be included in the Code of the Town of Ossining. The codifier shall make no substantive changes to this Local Law, but may renumber, rearrange and edit it without first submitting it to the Ossining Town Board. Any such rearranging, renumbering and editing shall not affect the validity of this Local Law or the provisions of the Code affected thereby.

Section 9: Separability

The provisions of this Local Law are separable and if any provision, clause, sentence, subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional, or inapplicable to any person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality, or inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, subsections, words or parts of this Local Law or their petition to other persons or circumstances. It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that this Local law would have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or unconstitutional provision, clause, sentence, subsection, word or part had not been included therein, and if such person or circumstance to which the Local Law or part hereof is held inapplicable had been specifically exempt there from.

Section 10: Effective Date

This Local Law shall take effect immediately upon adoption and filing with the Secretary of State as provided by the Municipal Home Rule Law.

J:\DOCS2\500\Ossining (t)\code amendments\affordable LL 4-28-11.dhs.doc